KEY WEST & CUBA

INTERNATIONAL
OCEAN TELEGRAPH CO.
IN KEY WEST

For the first time, the United States is
directly connected to a foreign country
through underwater cable. This an account
of Key West's important role in a major
historical event.

By Tom Hambright
Copyright 1991

Intoday’s information age, it is easy
to forget that electrical communication
is less than 150 years old. In 1844,
Samuel Morse built the first telegraph
line from Baltimore to Washington. A
test of an underwater cable the next
year in Portsmouth, England, proved
an underseas cable was possible.

The underwater cable required a
different electrical insulator than in use
at that time. The answer was Gutta
Percha, a rubber-like substance from
the tree of the same name. The only
liability was the Gutta Percha would
become soft and pliable in warm air.
Underwater storage solved this prob-
fem.

A submarine cable between England
and France in 1849 proved international
communication practical. The Ameri-
can Civil War had delayed the devel-
opment of underseas cable in this coun-
try. At the end of the war, entrepre-
neurs, seeing a potential market, moved
to organize submarine cable compa-
nies.

Businessmen James A. Scrymser and
Alfred Pell, Jr. incorporated the Inter-
national Ocean Telegraph Co. (I0TC)
on Dec. 2, 1865. The line was to con-
nect the United States and Cuba and,
eventually, Central and South America
and the Caribbean. The president of
the new company was former Union
General William F. “Baldy” Smith. The
company obtained exclusive landing
rights from the United States Govern-
ment, the Spanish Government and the
State of Florida. In addition, Congress
passed a law authorizing all telegraph
companies to place lines on federal
public domain and on military and post
roads, as well as giving the companies
the right to take necessary “stone, tim-
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The landing of the International Ocean Telegraph cable at Key West on August 3,
1867. Harper's Magazine, September, 1867. Photograph courtesy Monroe County

Library.

ber, and other materials for its posts,
piers, stations and other needful uses.”
The State of Florida gave the company
the right “to construct and maintain
their Telegraphic Lines over the Internal
Improvement and Swamp lands of
Florida without charge during the
existence of said Company.”

The IOTC began construction of the
land line from Lake City to Punta Rassa
in the spring of 1867 and completed
the work on May 29. From Lake City,
north the messages would travel by
Western Union Telegraph Co. lines.

The India Rubber, Gutta Percha and
Telegraph Works Co. of England manu-
factured the submarine cable. The 1,200-
ton schooner-rigged screw steamer,
Narva, carried the cable from England
and was the cable layer. The United
States steamer, Tahoma, the lighthouse
steamer, Fountain, and the Spanish war
steamer, Francisco de Asis, assisted
the Narva.

The underwater work began with the
landing of the shore end of the cable
at Key West on Aug. 3. The next day,
the Narva laid the cable to the south
of Sand Key and then cut and buoyed
the end. The Narva then sailed to
Havana and landed the other shore on

Aug.5. The next day, the Narva sailed
north to Key West paying out
cable at about the rate of 3-1/2 miles
per hour to connect with the Key West
shore end. Weather and navigation
problems delayed the splicing of the
Cuban cable and Sand Key end unitil
August 18.

On Aug. 21, E.O. Gwynn, mayor of
Key West, and Joaquin del Manzano,
captain-general of Cuba exchanged
telegrams. The Narva had brought
yellow fever to Key West. This delayed
the completion of the mainland con-
nection until Sept. 10. On Sept. 11, 1867,
Secretary of State William H. Seward
and Captain-General Joaquin del
Manzano exchanged greetings.

The cable landed in Key West near
the bridge at Ft. Zachary Taylor. The
cable ran underground to the telegraph
office. The location of the first office
is not yet known. On the north side of
the island, the cable shore connection
was at the army barracks, the area now
known as Peary Court.

Communication with the outside
world was now available, but beyond
the means of the average working man.
As part of the bill to grant the com-
pany an exclusive franchise to Cuba,



/% Congress had limited the costof a tele-

. . gram to $3.50 for each 10 words. The

company interpreted the limitation to
apply only to the undersea cable and
by 1870, the charge for a 10 word cable
from Havana to Lake City was $4.00
in gold.

The cable did end the isolation Key
West had suffered from with irregular
mail service. The citizens of Key West
arranged to receive daily news ser-
vice.

From the beginning, the IOTC was
a financial success. In 1868, the com-
pany added a second cable to handle
the increased traffic. In 1873, the Punta
Rassa-Havana line handled 51,899
messages. This prosperity led to the
giant Western Union acquiring con-
trolling interest in the company that
year. The IOTC was to remain a sub-
sidiary until Western Union absorbed
it in 1957. Also constructed in 1873
was the new Key West office at 416
Greene St. '

The IOTC added and replaced cables
over the years as required for traffic
or the old lines failed. The Key West-
Havana cable added new lines in 1873

and 1917. The Key West-Punta Rassa
cable added new lines in 1871, 1875,

1890, and 1927. The latter was a two
channel cable. The 1890 line included
a station at Sanibel Island. The com-
pany discontinued the Sanibel station
in 1927. In 1899, the IOTC completed
a Key West-Miami cable. This was a
three channel cable. After 1927, the
company had three single channel
cables to Havana, one dual channel
cable to Punta Rassa and one three
channel cable to Miami. The company
abandoned the Punta Rassa cable aftor
World War 1I.

The cable hut next to the Southern-
most Point monument on Whitehead
Street was part of the 1917 cable. This
provided connections to link the un-
dersea cable to the land line. The north-
ern connection and cable hut was on
the railroad property, the area now

“zKNown as Hilton Haven.

w» The location of the storage tanks,
- needed to keep the Gutta Percha cable

underwater, has changed over the

years. The first tanks were at

The International Ocean Telegraph/Western Union OffiCe at 416 GreenekSVtreet
circa early 1900's. Photograph courtesy

Key West,

Philbrick’s Wharf, where the A & B
Lobster House is today. The next tanks
were at William Curry & Son’s Wharf,
today the site of the Hyattand Galleon.
Next the site of the storage tanks was
the Florida East Coast Railroad yard at
Trumbo Point. When the Navy took over
Trumbo Point at the beginning of World
Warll, the IOTC solved its storage prob-
lem by using the ocean floor north of
Smith Shoals Lighthouse.

American Telephone and Telegraph
Co. (AT&T) built the cable storage tanks

Monroe County Library.

on Mallory Docks. The tanks were
needed to support the underwater
telephone lines to Cuba. AT&T built
the first tank in the early 1920’s when
the first phone line to Cuba opened and
built the second in 1930 to support the
six channel telephone cable laid that
year.

The firstsuperintendent of the cable
was W. H. Heiss. Heiss had supervised
the construction of the land line to
Punta Rassa. In 1873, when Western

(Continued on page 10)



(Cable from page 9)
Union took control of IOTC, N. DeBree
replaced Heiss as superintendent. In
1888, Martin Hellings became cable
manager in Key West. Prior to and
during the Spanish American War, he

operated an intelligence service for the

U.S. Government. Havana telegrapher,
Domingo Villaverde, whose office was
in the Governor General’s Palace, sup-
plied the information to the Key West
station. Hellings was then able to pro-
vide the White House War Room with
the latest news from Cuba. When the
war started, Hellings became a cap-
tain in the U.S. Army Volunteer Sig-
nal Corp. He retired from IOTC in 1906.

John W. Atkins became manager upon
Hellings retirement. In addition, he was
a noted ornithologist and his work
added two birds to the fauna of North
America. Atkins retired in 1929.

Capt. G.R. Steadman became the next
cable manager and captain of the cable
repair schooner, John W. Atkins. He
began working for Western Union in
Key West in 1917. Before that he had
worked for Florida East Coast Railway

‘running launch boats and building
telephone lines to construction camps
while the railroad was under construc-
tion along the Florida Keys. When the
first train came to Key West in 1912,
he was on it, riding atop the cow
catcher. In 1939, Capt. Steadman took
command of the new cable schooner,
Western Union. Capt Steadman retired
in 1957 after 41-1/2 years with the
IOTC.

Capt. Richard (Dick) T. Steadman,
his son, started working for Western
Union in 1939. He worked out of both
the Miami and Key West offices until
1952, when he moved permanently to
Key West. When his father retired, Capt.
Dick became cable manager and master
of the Western Union. In the early
1970’s, the use of satellites and other
new technology led Western Union to
reduce its cable operations and retire
the schooner, Western Union. Capt.
Dick Steadman retired July 1, 1973, the
last cable manager in Key West.

Tom Hambright is Director of State and
Local History for the Monroe County
Library. For more history of the Interna-
tional Ocean Telegraph Company, see
Canter Brown, Jr.’s article in The Florida
Historical Quarterly of October, 1989.
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InKey West, the unusual and bizarre
are normally taken as matters of scant
notice. But, on Friday, Sept. 27, even
the most blasé residents and visitors
couldn’t help but pay rapt attention
as an event that had some of the ele-
ments of high drama unfolded. For on
that day, three rickety watercraft be-
gan a last voyage — overland.

The show began when a huge mo-
bile crane lumbered down Duval Street.

Itstopped just south of Moe’s Barber

Shop. Then, bystanders looked on in
disbelief as the crane operator expertly
steered his rig down a narrow lane
berdering a tiny vacant lot on the east
side of the street. He barely cleared a
building on orie side and overhanging
trees on the . Talk about a tight
fit; the cra tor seemed to have
done the impossible. Yet, this deft
maneuver was nothing compared to
what was eventually to follow. Next,
asemi-trailer truck towing a mammoth
flatbed trailerpulled up. It stopped in
the 600 block of Duval Street at the
entrance to the lot. While some vol-
unteers directed traffic around the
trailer blocking the street, others stayed
in the lot and bustled around the ob-
jects that were the focus of the entire
operation. '

Almost lost among the overhanging
trees and shadows were a primitive
raft composed of rusty oil drums lashed
to a wooden frame, and two decrepit,
moldering, wooden boats. The larger
of the two boats was 27 feet long. Its
lines were similar to those found on
open fishing boats used in the Keys
almost a generation ago. A small die-
sel engine protruded amidst the leaves
and debris that had accumulated in the
cockpit. Painted on her bows, in faded,
peeling letters, was the name Caleta.
The second boat was only 16 feet long.
Great sections of her planking were
missing or badly rotted. Although she
had obviously once been fitted with
an inboard engine, she resembled
nothing so much as the whaleboats or
“pulling boats” that had been common
during the Age of Sail. On her stern,
the name Alicia was spelled out. As
for the raft, it resembled nothing of any






